
          

 

 

COUNTY LINE 
DRAINAGE DISTRICT 

 

LEE COUNTY 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

APRIL 12, 2023 
10:00 A.M. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Special District Services, Inc. 
27499 Riverview Center Boulevard, #253 

Bonita Springs, FL 33134 

www.countylinedd.org 
561.630.4922 Telephone 
877.SDS.4922 Toll Free 
561.630.4923 Facsimile 



 
AGENDA 

COUNTY LINE 
DRAINAGE DISTRICT 
23351 North River Road 

Alva, Florida 33920 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

April 12, 2023 
10:00 A.M. 

 
 

A. Call to Order 

B. Proof of Publication…………………………………………………………………………......Page 1 

C. Establish Quorum 

D. Additions or Deletions to Agenda 

E. Comments from the Public for Items Not on the Agenda 

F. Approval of Minutes  

1. January 11, 2023 Regular Board Meeting…………………………………………………...Page 2 

G. Old Business 

H. New Business 

1. Discussion Regarding Reinstating Crews Bank Line of Credit 

2. Consider Resolution 2023-01 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2023/2024 Proposed Budget……..Page 5 

I. Manager’s Report 

1. Financial Report……………………………………………………………………………..Page 11 

J. Field Report……………………………………………………………………………………...Page 14 

K. Engineer’s Report 

L. Attorney’s Report 

1. Update on Dean Case 

M. Administrative Matters 

N. Board Members Comments 

O. Adjourn 

 



Page 1



 

Page 1 of 3 
 

COUNTY LINE DRAINAGE DISTRICT 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

JANUARY 11, 2023 
 
 
A. CALL TO ORDER 
 
The January 11, 2023, Regular Board Meeting of the County Line Drainage District (the “District”) was called 
to order at 10:00 a.m. at 23351 North River Road, Alva, Florida 33920. 
 
B. PROOF OF PUBLICATION 
 
Proof of publication was presented that notice of the Regular Board Meeting had been published in the Fort 
Myers News-Press on September 30, 2022, as part of the District’s Fiscal Year 2022/2023 Meeting Schedule, 
as legally required.  
 
C. ESTABLISH A QUORUM 
 
It was determined that the attendance of the following Supervisors constituted a quorum and it was in order to 
proceed with the meeting: 
 
President Joe Beale Present 
Vice President Paul Fabry Present 
Assistant Secretary Pat McKenna Present 

 
Staff members in attendance were: 
 
District Manager Kathleen Meneely Special District Services, Inc. 
General Counsel Bob Diffenderfer (via phone) Lewis, Longman & Walker 
District Engineer Kyle Grandusky (via phone) GMAwater, LLC 
Field Consultant Randy Sebring  

 
Also present were Keith & Stephanie Dean, Mark Ebelini, Cullum Jefferies, Dan Murray; and Seth Behn of 
Lewis Longman & Walker (via phone). 
 
D. ADDITIONS OR DELETIONS TO THE AGENDA 
 
Ms. Meneely requested, and it was the consensus of the Board, to add under New Business - Consider Quit 
Claim Deed for the Dean Property, since the item was tabled at the last meeting. 
 
E. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA 
 
There were no comments from the public for items not on the agenda. 
 
F. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 1.  November 8, 2022, Regular Board Meeting 
 
The November 8, 2022, Regular Board Meeting minutes were presented for consideration. 

Page 2



 

Page 2 of 3 
 

 
A motion was made by Mr. McKenna, seconded by Mr. Fabry and passed unanimously approving July 13, 
2022, Public Hearing & Regular Board Meeting minutes, as presented. 
 
G. OLD BUSINESS 
 1.  Discussion Regarding Reinstating Crews Bank Line of Credit 
 
Ms. Meneely went over the background of the application, noting that the Board had decided to move forward 
with reinstating the line of credit for $100,000.  The Board discussed the necessary information, including: the 
County Line Drainage District was the borrowing entity; SDS staff Tori Shamy and Kathleen Meneely are the 
approved individuals, in addition to the Board Members, to obtain information; Chairman Joe Beale is 
authorized to execute the loan documents and perform draws; and pledged funding comes from future tax 
receipts.  
 
A motion was made by Mr. Fabry. seconded by Mr. McKenna and passed unanimously to continue moving 
forward with reinstating the line of credit with approval of all stipulations above recited. 
 
 2.  Consider Quit Claim Deed for the Dean Property (ADDED) 
 
Mr. Diffenderfer gave a background regarding a request to quit claim deed an easement of record over the 
Dean property, noting that the item had been tabled at the last meeting.  Mr. Ebolini, attorney for the Deans, 
stated that the Deans were asking the Board to execute a quit claim deed and avoid the expense of going to 
court.   He further stated that the original grantor of the easement may have had the intent to convey the 
easement, but did not have clear title and the Deans are looking for relief.  Mr. Dean stated that the person who 
gave the easement never acquired the land and now the current owners want to develop it into three properties. 
Mr. Beale stated that it was nothing personal, but he had substantial concern for the District’s interests.  
 
A motion was made by Mr. Beale, seconded by Mr. McKenna and passed unanimously denying the Dean’s 
request. 
 
 
H. NEW BUSINESS 
 
There were no New Business items to come before the Board. 
 
I. MANAGER’S REPORT  
 1.  Financial Report 
 
Ms. Meneely went over financial report.  There were no questions from the Members of the Board. 
 
A motion was made by Mr. Fabry, seconded by Mr. McKenna and passed unanimously approving the financial 
report, as presented. 
 
J. FIELD REPORT 
 
Mr. Sebring went over his report as well as the culvert issue. 
 
A motion was made by Mr. Fabry, seconded by Mr. McKenna and passed unanimously accepting the Field 
Report, as presented. 

Page 3



 

Page 3 of 3 
 

 
K. ENGINEER’S REPORT 
 
Mr. Grandusky gave an update on the construction of interest to the District. 
 
A motion was made by Mr. Fabry, seconded by Mr. McKenna and passed unanimously accepting the 
Engineer’s Report, as presented. 
 
L. ATTORNEY’S REPORT 
 
Ms. Meneely stated that attorney Terry Lewis of Lewis, Longman & Walker had retired and Robert 
Diffenderfer, along with Seth Behn, of the same firm would now serve in the role as the District’s attorneys.  
Both attorneys went over their backgrounds and their assistance to Mr. Lewis over his many years of service 
to the District.  
 
A motion was made by Mr. Beale, seconded by Mr. Fabry and passed unanimously acknowledging the new 
attorneys who will represent the District.   
 
M. ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
 
Ms. Meneely advised that the next meeting was scheduled for April 12, 2023. 
  
N. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 
 
There were no further comments from the Board Members. 
 
O. ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business to come before the Board, a motion was made by Mr. Beale, seconded by Mr. 
Fabry and passed unanimously adjourning the Regular Board Meeting at 10:30 a.m. 
 
 
 
 
__________________________________ __________________________________ 
Secretary/Assistant Secretary   President/Vice President 
 
 

Page 4



RESOLUTION NO. 2023-01 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE COUNTY 
LINE DRAINAGE DISTRICT APPROVING A PROPOSED BUDGET 
FOR FISCAL YEAR 2023/2024; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. 
 

 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors (“Board”) of the County Line Drainage District 
(“District”) is required by Chapter 298, Florida Statutes, to approve a Proposed Budget for each 
fiscal year; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the Proposed Budget including the Assessments for Fiscal Year 2023/2024 
has been prepared and considered by the Board. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
OF THE COUNTY LINE DRAINAGE DISTRICT THAT: 
 

Section 1. The Proposed Budget including the Assessments for Fiscal Year 
2023/2024 attached hereto as Exhibit “A” is approved and adopted. 
 

Section 2.       A Public Hearing is hereby scheduled for June 28, 2023 at 10:00 a.m. in 
23351 North River Road, Alva, Florida 33920, for the purpose of receiving public comments on 
the Proposed Fiscal Year 2023/2024 Budget. 
 
 

PASSED, ADOPTED and EFFECTIVE this 12th day of April, 2023. 
 

 
ATTEST: COUNTY LINE DRAINAGE DISTRICT 
 
 
 
 
By:  By:  
 Secretary/Assistant Secretary Chairman/Vice Chairman 

Page 5



    County Line
   Drainage District

     Proposed Budget For
     Fiscal Year 2023/2024

    October 1, 2023 - September 30, 2024

Page 6



Page 7



Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



County Line
Drainage District

 Financial Report For
March 2023

Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



COUNTY LINE DRAINAGE DISTRICT 
FIELD REPORT 

FOR THE MONTHS OF JANUARY THROUGH MARCH 2023 
 

 
 

1) CULVERTS REMOVED/INSTALLED 
 

a) None. 
 

2) CANALS CLEANED 
 
       a)   None. 
 
 

3) WEED CONTROL 
 

a) None. 
 

4) ROADS MAINTENANCE 
 

a) None. 
 

5) METERS/PUMPS 
 

a) Read all meters. 
 

6) PROJECTED OR SPECIAL PROJECT  
 
      a)  None. 
      
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 14


	County Line Drainage District - April 12, 2023 Regular Board Meeting Book
	Agenda
	Proof of Publication
	January 11, 2023 Regular Board Meeting Minutes
	Consider Resolution 2023-01 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2023/2024 Proposed Budget
	Financial Report
	Field Report




